
Table of Contents

Agenda 021725 2

VA 01272025 Meeting Minutes 3

VB Revenue & Expenses Report 1.31.25 5

VI Staff Reports February 58

vIXA Seyller Park Progress Report Memo 61

vIXA1 Seyller Park Progress Report 62

vIXB Skate Park Rules Memo 66

vIXB1 Skate Park Resolution 2025-02 67

vIXB2 Skate Park Rules 68

vIXC Ordinance to Replace Registrar Memo 69

vIXC1 Ordinance - Replace Registrar 4869-8340-8639 v6 70

vIXD Kane County Riverboat Grant Application - Special Event Kit 72

vIXD1 2025 Riverboat Grant Special Event Kit 74

vIXE Kane County Riverboat Grant Application - STEAM 75

vIXE1 2025 Riverboat Grant STEAM 76

vIXF Kane County Riverboat Grant Application - Bus 77

vIXF1 2025 Riverboat Grant Bus 78

vIXG Temporary Park Names Memo 79

vXIG1 Temporary ParkNamingPolicy 80



In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need assistance or special accommodations in order 
to participate in the meeting, please contact the Hampshire Township Park District Administration Office at (847) 
683-2690 a minimum of 72 hours in advance of the scheduled meeting. Every effort will be made to allow for 
meeting participation.   

 

 

 
 
 
 

Meeting of 

 

 

I. Call to Order 

II. Pledge of Allegiance 

III. Approval of Agenda 

IV. Citizens to be Heard 
The public is invited to make an issue-oriented comment on any matter of public concern not 

otherwise on the agenda. The public comment may be no longer than 5 minutes in duration. 

Interrogation of the Park District Staff, President or Board of Commissioners will not be allowed at 
this time, nor will any comment from the Board.  

 

V. Consent Agenda 

A. Approval of January 27, 2025 Meeting Minutes 

B. Approval of payables paid between meetings from 1/28/25 to 2/12/25 in the 

amount of $19,732.19. 

 

VI. Staff Reports 

VII. Commissioner and Staff Comments 

VIII. Old Business 

 

IX. New Business 

A. Seyller Park Progress Report 

B. Skate Park Resolution #2025-02 

C. AN ORDINANCE appointing a new registrar and paying agent for certain 

outstanding bonds of the Hampshire Township Park District, Kane County 

D. Kane County Riverboat Grant Resolution #2025-04 – Special Event Kit 

E. Kane County Riverboat Grant Resolution #2025-05 – STEAM  

F. Kane County Riverboat Grant Resolution #2025-06 – Bus 

G. Temporary Park Names 

 

X. Executive Session 

 

XI. Adjournment – Next meeting – March 3, 2025  

Meeting of the 
HAMPSHIRE TOWNSHIP PARK DISTRICT 

Board of Commissioners 
February 17, 2025 

6:30 p.m. 
390 South Ave. 

 
AGENDA 

 



  

Hampshire Township Park District 

Board of Commissioners 

Meeting Minutes 

January 27, 2025 
  

  

  

  
Call to Order:   

At 6:30 p.m. President Looman called the meeting to order.  

Commissioners Present:  Jamie Herrmann, Jennifer Reid, Nathan Looman, Tamara Chiu (arrived at 

6:50 pm) 

Commissioners Absent: Meagan Tiffany 

Staff Present:  Laura Schraw- Executive Director, Patti Prill- Finance/HR Director 

 

Commissioner Herrmann made a motion to approve the agenda. Seconded by Commissioner Reid.  

Motion passed 3 Ayes, 0 Nays, 0 Abstain.  

 

Citizens to be Heard:  Girl Scout Troop 2258 spoke to the Board of Commissioners in regard to a Free 

Little Library at Seyller Park.  Each Girl Scout participated in the presentation.  The girls will earn a badge 

when it is completed.  The Scouts asked the Board of Commissioners permission to build the Free Little 

Library in front of Little People Playtime. 

 

Agenda  

Consent Agenda  

A. Approval of November 18, 2024 Meeting Minutes  

B. Approval of December 2, 2024 Public Hearing Meeting Minutes  

C. Approval of December 2, 2024 Meeting Minutes  

D. Approval of January 13, 2025 Working Meeting Minutes  

E. Approval of payables paid between meetings from 11/15/2024 to 1/24/25 in the amount of 

$197,437.87.  

F. Approval of Transfer of Funds within Heartland Bank, from Money Market #9632 to Checking 

Account #0235 in the amount of $50,000.00.  

G. Approval of Transfer of Funds within Heartland Bank, from Money Market #9624 to Checking 

Account #0235 in the amount of $50,000.00.  

H. Approval of Transfer of Funds within Heartland Bank, from Money Market #9632 to Checking 

Account #0235 in the amount of $50,000.00.  

I. Approval of Transfer of Funds within Heartland Bank, from Money Market #9632 to Checking 

Account #0235 in the amount of $100,000.00. 

 

Commissioner Herrmann made a motion to approve the consent agenda items.  Seconded by 

Commissioner Reid.  Motion  passed 3 Ayes, 0 Nays, 0 Abstain. 



 

Staff Reports- Staff reports were submitted electronically prior for Commissioner review.  Executive 

Director Schraw updated the Board on the status of the ice rink and the liner (which is brand new) which 

the Park District will be returning/exchanging.   

 

Commissioner and Staff Comments- Discussion was had regarding Finance Director Prill working on 

renewing her notary stamp.  Commissioner Herrmann inquired about thinking of another staff member 

working on getting their notary as well. President Looman shared about the employee appreciation event 

and how well attended it was. 

 

Old Business- 

 

 

New Business 

A. Free Little Library- Girl Scout Troop 2258 is building a Free Little Library as part of their 

woodworking/building badge and has asked to put it in one of our parks. Troop 2258 presented to the 

Board their proposal.  Commissioner Reid made a motion to approve the project located at Little People 

Playtime.  Seconded by Commissioner Herrmann.  Motion passed with 3 Ayes, 0 Nays, 0 Abstain. 

 

B. Abatement Ordinance #2025-01- Executive Director Schraw presented an ordinance abating the tax 

hereto levied for the year 2024 to pay the principal of and interest on General Obligation Refunding Park 

Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2015, of the Hampshire Township Park District.  

Commissioner Reid made a motion to approve the abatement ordinance 2025-01.  Seconded by 

Commissioner Herrmann.   

President Looman called the role- 

Chiu- Aye 

Herrmann- Aye 

Looman- Aye 

Reid- Aye 

Tiffany- Absent 

 

Motion passed with 4 Ayes, 0 Nays, 0 Abstain. 

 

C. Program and Rental Rates- Staff presented their proposed rate increases for programs to help offset 

the increase in operations.  Commissioner Chiu made a motion to approve the rate increases for 

programs and rental change fees.  Seconded by Commissioner Herrmann.  Motion passed with 4 Ayes, 0 

Nays, 0 Abstain. 

 

D. Budget Calendar 2025- Executive Director Schraw presented the proposed budget calendar for the 

FY26 Budget.  Commissioners had the opportunity to ask any questions. 

 

E. Seyller Park Progress Report- Executive Director Schraw provided the Board of Commissioners with 

an updated Seyller Park Progress report.  Commissioners had the opportunity to ask any questions with 

the status of the project. 

 

Adjournment:   At 7:12 p.m. Commissioner Reid made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  Seconded by 

Commissioner Herrmann.  Motion passed with 4  Ayes, 0 Nays, 0 Abstain.   













































































































 

 

 

 

Director’s Report 

• Completed EIS filing list. 
• Completed periodic filing report for OSLAD Grant. 
• Completed ISBE forms for grants. 
• Risk Management Review kickoff meeting and discussion on 2025 SMART goals. 
• Completed the Information Directory should someone request specific information on the 

Park District so the staff has the information readily available. It was also provided to the 
LPP building. 

• Vehicle lease paperwork completed for NISRA. 
• Completed the HR Coordinator job description and working with the Office Coordinator 

on management of the job posting. Reviewing the first round of applications received. 
• Attended the 150th Anniversary Meeting. Discussed a Special Event Kit at the meeting 

and the other groups were in support of applying for Riverboat Funds to build a kit for all 
agencies to utilize.  

• Working on Riverboat Grants for a variety of potential projects: 150th Anniversary 
Special Event kit, STEAM program for LPP, and a bus. 

• Discussions on food truck permits at the park with staff, Village and legal. Looking into a 
permit for our parks as the Village permit does not provide additional coverage should 
they damage something (i.e. drive over a water line) in our parks. 

• Creation and review of Skate Park Rules & Regulations for a sign to be posted on site. 
• Review of Skate Park inspections and rules and provided the inspection sheet from 

PDRMA to the Parks department. It was confirmed, in writing, by the manufacturer that 
skates, bikes and even e-scooters can go on the skate park equipment. 

• Foundation meeting will be held on February 19, 2025. 

Finance/HR 

Financial 
 

 
• Weekly payables 
• Processed payroll 
• Federal Tax Reports filed 
• Unemployment Reports filed  
• Monthly IDES Report filed 
• Daily deposits 
• Foundation deposits 
• Foundation checks  
• Prepared documents for the Foundation meeting 
• IMRF monthly report filed 
• Prepared Budget 25-26 with worksheets 
• W-2’s and 1099’s completed and mailed on January 30, 2025 
• E-Filed W-2’s  

Memorandum 
To:  Hampshire Park District Board of Commissioners 
From:  Laura Schraw, Executive Director 
Date:  February 17, 2025 
Agenda Item: VI.A. 
Subject: Staff Reports – February 



 

 

 Human Resources 
  

• HR matters 
• Background checks 
• HR entries to keep personnel files up to date 
• FMLA 

 

Recreation 
 
Special Events and Programs 

• Walkin’ Hampshire- Secured St. Charles Borromeo School Gym for the February walk 
on 2/22 and we will walk indoors again on 3/1 in the Hampshire High School 
Fieldhouse!  

• St. Patrick’s Day 5K 3/15/25- Attended Large Group Gathering Meeting for race day. 
New 5K route was approved. Medals ordered. We received 3 more sponsorships from 
Mary Sagan-Century 21, Bright Eyes and Snap Fitness. 88 participants are registered 
for the race at this time.  

• Chamber’s Ice Sculpture & Cocoa Crawl 2/19- Prepared our window decorations for ice 
sculpture photo op. Provides HTPD flyers and swag for the cocoa crawl participants. 

• Train staff on taking rentals, registrations and updating/creating programs through 
activity maintenance in Rec Trac. Also training on website editing. 

• Easter Events- Annual Egg Hunt, the new Flashlight Egg Hunt and Doggie Egg Hunt; 
flyers designed, advertised. 

• Created and submitted ad for the 2025-2026 Chamber area guide. 
• Attended Village of Hampshire’s 150th year planning meeting. 
• Park District will have a table at the D300’s Postsecondary/College, Career and 

Transition Fair at DCHS on 2/20. Prepared job opportunities flyer and ordered park 
district swag to hand out. 

• Website/RecTrac API integration is complete. Working on applying codes to each 
program/event page on the back end. 

• The Park District is sponsoring the HHS Spirit Shirts project. The t-shirts are free to the 
school and given out to the kids. A very select few businesses can participate and our 
logo will be on the sleeve of the shirt!  

• Constant contact e-newsletters, Facebook posts, website updates.  

Athletics 

• Basketball 
o Scheduled refs and gym supervision throughout the week for multiple sites.  

• Spring Soccer 
o 300 program participants signed up. 
o March 9th registration deadline. 
o Working on getting sponsors for U4 shirts. 
o Starting to build practice schedules and locations. 
o League meeting with other park districts scheduled for March 7th. 

• Spring Flag Football(NEW) 



o 68 program participants signed up.  
o March 9th registration deadline. 
o League meeting with Huntley on March 7th. 

• Spring Flag Cheer 
o 19 program participants signed up. 
o We still need coaches. 
o March 9th registration deadline. 
o New program back in the fall, this an increase of participation from 2024. 

• Spring Volleyball 
o 73 program participants signed up. 
o March 2nd registration deadline. 

 

ETC 

• All 3 schools are fully staffed with the exception of (2) One on One Aides needed at BTE 
• BTE: Everyone is off the waitlist. We have 50 registered with (3) children starting 

February 3rd 
• HES: Everyone is off the waitlist we have 82 registered  
• GDW: Everyone is off the waitlist we have 53 registered with (1) child starting February 3 
• Working on Summer Camp Parent Handbook 
• Working on 2025-26 ETC Parent Handbook 

Parks 

• Repair and paint 390 bathroom partitions 
• Repaint both bathrooms at 390 
• Begin prep to repaint community room 
• Spring prep 
• Plow and salt 

Early Childhood 

Little People Playtime 

• We held our annual Re-registration for the 2025/2026 school year. Our daycare 
classrooms are close to being at capacity and our preschool rooms are slowly filling up.   

• We are coming up with some new fun ideas and activities for the 2025/2026 school year 
to add enrichment type programs a few times a month. (After preschool times.) 

• We are also trying a Pilot program of STEAM Pre-K to see if we draw more interest into 
the programs.  

• We have Read Across America Day on March 4th and have reached out to a few local 
companies to see if they will come and read to the students.  If anyone would like to take 
a few minutes to come read on the 4th please email afreer@hampshireparkdistrict.org.  

• I have been busy setting up all our summer camp programs both for daycare and 
preschool type classes.   

 



 

 

 

 

 
Background 
 
The Seyller Park Construction Progress Report is attached.  
 
Recommendation 
 
Informational only. 
 
 
 
 

Memorandum 
To:  Hampshire Park District Board of Commissioners 
From:  Laura Schraw, Executive Director 
Date:  February 17, 2025 
Agenda Item: IX.A. 
Subject: Seyller Park Construction Progress Report 



Seyller Park Construction - Planning & Progress Report 2.17.25 

May 2023 

• Hampshire Township Park District received the grant authorization from the Illinois Department of 

Natural Resources. 

June 2023 

• Awarded IAPD/PlayCore funding assistance for the playground. 

August 2023 

• Engineering firms were contacted for estimates for services. Selection of an engineering firm for project 

scope. 

• Reviewed engineering proposal for a recommendation for architectural/engineering services. 

• Reviewed playground and shelter proposals. 

• Met with contractors regarding the project. 

• Met with company regarding basin naturalization 

• Met with contractor regarding tree maintenance and removal. 

• Selected engineering firm. 

September 2023 

• Selected playground equipment options to review with the Board of Commissioners. 

• Met with engineering firm. 

• Park surveyed for engineering. 

October 2023 

• Reviewed concept plan of parking areas. 

• The playground and shelter and installation was authorized by the Board via the OMNIA join purchasing 

cooperative. 

November 2023 

• Nature play area reviewed.  

• Concept plan and topography received.  

December 2023 

• Met with the contractor to locate the shelter and discuss the playground and shelter project and review 

plans and electrical requirements. 

• Removal of the old equipment and preparation for the new equipment began the week of 12/4. 

• Submitted engineering plans to EEI at the Village of Hampshire for review and approval.  

January 2024 

• Received comments from EEI which were reviewed and a response was prepared by Manhard and 

submitted to the Village. 

• Meeting with the skatepark consultant. 

February 2024 

• Engineering review in preparation for bid. 



• Meeting on skate park. 

• Met with contractor regarding surfacing for skate park. 

• Playground and shelter installation completed. 

March 2024 

• Playground opened March 1st 

• Met with tree contractor for tree removal for parking lots. 

• Met with Eagle Scout and residents that are assisting in laying out the disc golf course. 

• Met with landscaper on repairing and sodding the area in front of the new amphitheater and backfilling 

around the playground. 

• Bid opening with Manhard, review of bids, and discussion on project. 

• Meeting scheduled with EnCap on scrub tree removal for the disc golf course. 

• Contract awarded for the parking lot and re-paving of the skate park area. 

April 2024 

• Held precon meeting with Village and Everelast Blacktop. 

• Arborist report received for trees at Seyller. Most were in fair condition and a lot had root swelling. Trees 

would not survive major construction. 

• Met with tree service company regarding tree removal at Seyller. Trees were removed and larger trunks 

saved for Nature Play area. 

• Contacted neighbors regarding construction to ensure open communication with them for the project. 

Sent contact info to the contractor for future closures if it would affect their ingress/egress. 

• Met with EnCap regarding tree pruning for the disc golf course. 

• Met with Stark & Son regarding BMP area with drainage issue near LPP for repair. 

• Discussed project with Beacon Athletics regarding netting for backstop fencing. 

• Emailed fence contractor regarding backstop replacement. 

• Received quotes for infield repair. 

• Contacted All Weather Courts about tennis and basketball court resurfacing. They determined that they 

could not repair the courts. 

• Received a quote for new backboards at Seyller basketball, however, determining if the entire post needs 

replacement.  

• Met with Everlast Blacktop at Seyller Park. 

• Ordered Disc Golf Baskets. 

• The area in front of the amphitheater has been repaired with sod as well as around the playground curb 

with seed and blanket. We hope to use this area this summer for Music Under the Oaks if we can get the 

sod to survive. This was the best option for the high-traffic area other than fencing off the space with 

construction fence to let the seed establish. 

• Received fencing plans to work on the site design for the ballfield project. 

• Reviewed trail staking, Veteran’s Memorial needed adjustment to align new path with stairway. 

May 2024 

• Met with fence contractor on site for the skate park and ballfield. Quotes have been secured and signed. 

• Received and signed quotes for concrete work, shade structures, dugout benches and basketball hoops. 

• Received a change order to mill and repave the entire sports court surface since it was determined they 

cannot be re-color coated until this is done. The change order was approved by IDNR. 

• Work began and is nearing completion on the parking lot and path connections. 

• Work began on the BMP area near LPP. 



• Finalizing color coating color options and design for the sports courts. 

• Reviewing quote for infield work. 

June 2024 

• Parking lot and courts have been completed, working on final punch list items. 

• Met with ballfield contractor for infield, work is to start the week of June 17th. 

• Setting up contractors and schedule for ballfield construction. 

• Ordered emergent wetland seeding for BMP area. 

• Disc Golf Course Eagle Scout is working on donations for supplies for the project. Acknowledgement of 

sponsorship of a tee will be part of the project. 

July 2024 

• Ballfield work has continued beyond expected timeline due to high rainfall events. 

• Fencing is scheduled and permit has been applied for with the Village of Hampshire. Submitted final map 

and anticipate the permit will be issued soon. 

• Concrete work will be scheduled after fence posts are in for the dugouts, walkways and installation of 

basketball hoops. 

• Color coating was finalized and will be in the fall. 

• Skate park design was reviewed and approved, installation will happen after color coating is done. 

• Eagle Scout project has been moving forward and they are nearing completion.  

• Verified with EnCap that the basin naturalization is on the schedule for the fall.  

• Contractor was secured to create the natural area and took the logs to be cut prior to the Music Under 

the Oaks event. 

• Met with a contractor regarding BMP seeding by LPP. 

August 2024 

• Repairs were made to the BMP area by LPP. The drainage was fixed and the area was seeded and 

blanketed. 

• Met with concrete contractor to lay out the sidewalks. Modifications were made from the engineer’s plan 

due to what we see in drainage patterns from the street/parking lot runoff.  

• Fence posts went in and the concrete contractor is scheduled the week of 8/19.  

• After the concrete is installed, the fence contractor will come back and install the chain link fence. 

• Trees were removed that fell during storms. 

• The Eagle Scout completed the tee and basket installation and now will be working on the signs.  

• Baskets were removed by the Parks Dept. for the car show. 

September 2024 

• Concrete has been completed and the basketball hoops and shade structures have been installed. 

• The area behind 390 South was sprayed for the start of the work on the natural area. Met with the 

contractor regarding the pollinator garden location. 

• The fencing contractor is scheduled for the week of 9/23 to put the chain link on the posts and install the 

posts in the tennis court. 

• The surfacing is scheduled for the end of the week of 9/23.  

• The fine grading and seeding of the ballfield is scheduled for the week of 9/23. 

• The skate park install is scheduled for the week of 10/7. 

• Met with the car show to discuss access spots and some earthwork, also tree locations for new plantings 

because of where cars parked by the ballfield.  



October 2024 

• Fenceposts were put in and most of the fencing for the skate park.  

• Surfacing was installed on the basketball court. 

• Skate park equipment was installed. 

• Ballfield infield was finished, earthwork and seeding/sodding completed. 

• Additional ramp for car entrance/exit was added near parking/hill. 

• Foul ball fence posts were painted yellow. 

• Parks department has been watering the sod. 

• Natural area was sprayed for a fall planting, however, the hot weather and then the freeze the planting 

will be pushed to the spring. 

• Met with the contractor for the nature play area. That will be installed in by this winter. 

• Waiting for the final touches (signs) for the disc golf course. 

• Tracer line installed on the fiber. 

November 2024 

• The Eagle Scout is wrapping up his project and will install a temporary hole number sign until the signs 

ordered come in. Then he will put on the final signs. 

• Skate Park signage is being reviewed by legal prior to ordering a sign to post on site. 

• The budget will be reviewed to determine how many picnic tables and trash receptacles can be ordered. 

• The sod has helped with the runoff from heavy rains until grass establishes. 

December 2025 

• No report 

January 2025 

• No report.  

February 2025 

• Final items to be completed are being scheduled. This includes the basin, natural area, picnic tables and 

trash receptacles.  

• Signage is also being discussed and a meeting with PDRMA will be held. 

• Skate Park Rules will be approved by the Board. 



 

 

 

 
Background 
 
Skate Park Rules are attached for review and approval. They have been reviewed by PDRMA and Legal. 
Once approved these will become part of our Park Ordinance, similar to the Splash Pad Rules.   
 
Recommendation 
 
Motion and second to approve Resolution #2025-02 Skate Park Rules. 
 
 
 

Memorandum 
To:  Hampshire Park Board of Commissioners 
From: Laura Schraw, Executive Director  
Date:  February 17, 2025 
Agenda Item: IX.B. 
Subject: Skate Park Resolution #2025-02 



1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-02 

 

A RESOLUTION 

APPROVING SKATE PARK RULES 

 

 

WHEREAS, the Hampshire Township Park District Board of Commissioners built a skate park 

at Ralph Seyller Memorial Park located at 390 South Ave., Hampshire, IL, 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF 

COMMISSIONERS OF THE HAMPSHIRE PARK DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1. That the President and Board of Commissioners of the Hampshire Park District 

approve the skate park rules, a copy of which is attached, for incorporation into the 

Use of Parks Ordinance, and as amended from time to time by the Board of 

Commissioners. 

    

2. That this Resolution shall take effect upon its passage and approval as provided by 

law. 

 

APPROVED BY VOTE OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF HAMPSHIRE 

TOWNSHIP PARK DISTRICT THIS ___ DAY OF ________________, 2025. 

 

 

HAMPSHIRE TOWNSHIP PARK DISTRICT 

 

By: _______________________________    

         Park District President 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

By: _______________________________    

           Park District Secretary 



 

 

 

 

Skate Park Rules for Ralph Seyller Park 

OR THE BENEFIT OF ALL PARTICIPANTS, PLEASE COMPLY WITH THE FOLLOWING 

SKATE PARK RULES 

The Skate Park shall be governed by the following regulations:  
 

1. The skate/bicycle park is unsupervised and participants skate/bike at their own risk.  
2. It is required that proper protective equipment such as helmets, elbow pads, knee pads 

etc. be used during skating and cycling.  
3. Caution must be used at the Skate Park: Bicycling, inline skating and skateboarding are 

high risk recreational activities with inherent risk of serious injury.  
4. No personally owned ramps, boxes, or other devices may be brought into the facility. 
5. No motorized equipment may be brought into the facility.  
6. Please be courteous of other park users.  
7. Bringing glass into the area is prohibited.  
8. Please keep your skate park clean.  
9. The skate park is open from March 1 – November 30, weather permitting.  
10. Daily hours are Monday – Sunday from 9:00 AM – 10:00PM, or when the lights turn off 

(seasonal hours.)  
11. The park will be closed during inclement weather. If the lightning detector activates 

(one 15 second horn) and strobe light is flashing, please leave the park until the all-clear 
sounds (three 5-second blasts).  

12. Please check the facility prior to use and report any items that need repair to the park 
district at 847-683-2690. 

13. Skate Park is under video surveillance. 
14. In the event rules are not being followed, the Hampshire Township Park District may 

choose, at its own discretion, to temporarily or permanently close this facility.  
15. The Hampshire Township Park District reserves the right to revise policies and/or rules 

regarding this skate park.  
16. The use of the skate park is governed by rules and regulations as may be adopted from 

time to time in rules, resolution and ordinance by the Hampshire Township Park District. 
17. All other Park Ordinances apply.  



 

 

 

 
Background 
 
Attached is an ordinance appointing a new registrar and paying agent for certain outstanding bonds of 
the Hampshire Township Park District. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Motion and second to approve Ordinance #2025-03 appointing a new registrar and paying agent for 
certain outstanding bonds of the Hampshire Township Park District, Kane County. 
 
 
 
 

Memorandum 
To:  Hampshire Park Board of Commissioners 
From: Laura Schraw, Executive Director,  
Date:  February 17, 2025 
Agenda Item: IX.C. 
Subject: Ordinance #2025-03 



vIXC1 Ordinance - Replace Registrar 4869-8340-8639 v6.docx 

2318129 

ORDINANCE NO. 2025-03 

AN ORDINANCE appointing a new registrar and paying agent for 

certain outstanding bonds of the Hampshire Township Park District, 

Kane County, Illinois. 

 * * * 

WHEREAS, the Hampshire Township Park District, Kane County, Illinois (the “District”), 

has outstanding its General Obligation Limited Tax Park Bonds, Series 2024B, dated July 2, 2024 

(the “Bonds”); and 

WHEREAS, The Huntington National Bank, Columbus, Ohio (“Huntington”), has been 

acting in its capacities as registrar and paying agent for the Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Park Commissioners of the District (the “Board”) has determined 

it is in the best interests of the District to appoint the Treasurer of the Board (the “Treasurer”) to 

serve as successor registrar and paying agent for the Bonds: 

NOW, THEREFORE, Be It and It Is Hereby Ordained by the Board of Park Commissioners 

of the Hampshire Township Park District, Kane County, Illinois, as follows: 

 Section 1. Incorporation of Preambles.  The Board hereby finds that all of the recitals 

contained in the preambles to this Ordinance are full, true and correct and does incorporate them 

into this Ordinance by this reference. 

 Section 2. Termination of Huntington Paying Agency Agreement; Payment of Fees.  The 

Board hereby authorizes the President of the Board or the Executive Director of the District to 

(a) terminate any Paying Agency Agreement between the District and Huntington with respect to 

the Bonds (the “PA Agreement”) and (b) pay any and all applicable fees required to be paid in 

connection with the termination of the PA Agreement. 

 Section 3. Appointment of Successor Registrar and Paying Agent.  The Board hereby 

appoints the Treasurer to serve as registrar and paying agent for the Bonds.   



-2- 

 Section 4. Severability.  If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance 

shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the invalidity or unenforceability of 

such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this 

Ordinance. 

 Section 5. Repeal.  All ordinances or resolutions or parts thereof in conflict herewith be 

and the same are hereby repealed, and this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect forthwith 

upon its adoption. 

Adopted February 17, 2025. 

______________________________________ 

President, Board of Park Commissioners 

______________________________________ 

Secretary, Board of Park Commissioners 

 

 



 

 

 

 
Background 
 
Planning has begun for the 150th Anniversary of the Village of Hampshire in 2026. As part of this group 
effort with the Chamber of Commerce, Village of Hampshire, Ella Johnson Memorial Library and 
Historical Society, as well as several local residents, we are in the beginning stages of planning a year of 
150th Anniversary events to occur in 2026 celebrating the rich history of Hampshire. The Park District will 
be involved in this celebration, which was discussed as add on elements to our already popular special 
community events that happen throughout the year.  
 
It was proposed to create a special event kit that could be used by all agencies at all events that would 
include a portable stage, safety and security lighting, safety barricades, lighting for downtown to replace 
the existing snowflakes for a variety of seasons, additional security measures for special events, as well 
as educational elements on the history of Hampshire including banners celebrating the anniversary and 
window clings with images of the past. 
 
Staff would like to create a Special Event Kit for community agencies to utilize for the 2026 celebration 
and beyond and apply for a Kane County Riverboat Grant to fund this kit.  
 
Below is information on the Kane County Riverboat Grants: 
 
Kane County Riverboat Grants are available for capital projects that focus on education, environment or 

economic development.  

• Education: Kane County seeks to promote or enhance educational and training programs and 
initiatives that address community and government improvement issues.  

• Environment: Kane County encourages programs and projects that address a broad spectrum of 
environmental issues.  

• Economic Development: Kane County supports initiatives that promote economic and 
community development.  

Projects that meet the broad eligibility criteria listed above should also address one or more of the 
following goals/strategies:  

• Promote cooperation among organizations without duplicating services.  
• Demonstrate practical approaches to current issues facing area residents.  
• Enhance or improve the self-sufficiency and effectiveness of area organizations.  
• Emphasize prevention.  

Additionally, favorable consideration will be given to projects that:  

• Affect a broad segment of the county's population.  

Memorandum 
To:  Hampshire Park Board of Commissioners 
From: Laura Schraw, Executive Director,  
Date:  February 17, 2025 
Agenda Item: IX.D. 
Subject: Kane County Riverboat Grant Resolution #2025-04 



• Are relevant to overall county needs and available resources.  
• Are pilot programs that are clearly replicable in their design.  
• Have reasonable prospects for future support.  
• Have brought together a wide variety of funding partners.  

Applicants may not receive more than $100,000 in Grand Victoria Riverboat funds per 
project.  Applications are due by March 5th.  
 
Recommendation 
 
Motion and second to approve Kane County Riverboat Grant Resolution #2025-04 authorizing Laura 
Schraw, Executive Director, to execute an application, funding agreement, and any other necessary 
documents. 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2025-04 
 

AUTHORIZING APPLICATION FOR 
KANE COUNTY GRAND VICTORIA RIVERBOAT FUNDS 
AND EXECUTION OF ALL NECESSARY DOCUMENTS 

 
WHEREAS, the Hampshire Township Park District has determined that it in its best 

interest to submit an application for Kane County Grand Victoria Riverboat Funds for a Special 
Event Kit to be utilized by the community event holders including the Village of Hampshire, 
Hampshire Chamber of Commerce, Hampshire Police Department, Hampshire CC Country Days, 
Ella Johnson Memorial Library, and especially the 150th Anniversary planning committee; and 
 

WHEREAS, said project will provide educational information banners, decorative 
banners, lighting, safety amenities for large event gatherings, a portable stage for various 
performers, and various other items to be included in the “Special Event Kit”; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Kane County Board must approve said application and will require the 
Hampshire Township Park District to execute a Funding Agreement and other necessary 
documents upon such approval. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Laura Schraw, Executive Director, is hereby 
authorized to execute an application for Kane County Grand Victoria Riverboat Funds, a 
Funding Agreement and other necessary documents upon approval of the application by the 
Kane County Board, and any requests for payment and documentation required to be 
submitted by the Hampshire Township Park District for the dispersal of said funds. 
 
 

SIGNED:  ____________________________________ 
 
 

ATTEST:  ____________________________________ 
 
Vote: _______ Ayes 

_______ Nays 
_______ Abstain 

 



 

 

 

 
Background 
 
Little People Playtime would like to add STEAM (Science, Technology, Engineering, Arts and 
Mathematics) elements to their programming. They are requesting supporting items such as updated 
materials in classrooms such as smart boards for children to be able to use these to learn the basics of 
technology. These include items such as a microscope for children to learn and discover with science. 
Items for coding and robotics to allow children to learn direction and help use that technology to have 
an object get from one place to another by using codes.  
 
Applications are due by March 5th.  
 
Recommendation 
 
Motion and second to approve Kane County Riverboat Grant Resolution #2025-05 authorizing Laura 
Schraw, Executive Director, to execute an application, funding agreement, and any other necessary 
documents. 
 
 
 
 

Memorandum 
To:  Hampshire Park Board of Commissioners 
From: Laura Schraw, Executive Director,  
Date:  February 17, 2025 
Agenda Item: IX.E. 
Subject: Kane County Riverboat Grant Resolution #2025-05 



RESOLUTION NO. 2025-05 
 

AUTHORIZING APPLICATION FOR 
KANE COUNTY GRAND VICTORIA RIVERBOAT FUNDS 
AND EXECUTION OF ALL NECESSARY DOCUMENTS 

 
WHEREAS, the Hampshire Township Park District has determined that it in its best 

interest to submit an application for Kane County Grand Victoria Riverboat Funds for STEAM 
funding to promote educational learning opportunities; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Hampshire Township Park District recognizes the importance of STEAM 

education in our preschool students.  This initiative would provide a strong foundation for the 
intellectual and creative development of children, helping to improve educational outcomes 
within our community by enhancing their skills in science, technology, engineering, arts and 
mathematics; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Kane County Board must approve said application and will require the 
Hampshire Township Park District to execute a Funding Agreement and other necessary 
documents upon such approval. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Laura Schraw, Executive Director, is hereby 
authorized to execute an application for Kane County Grand Victoria Riverboat Funds, a 
Funding Agreement and other necessary documents upon approval of the application by the 
Kane County Board, and any requests for payment and documentation required to be 
submitted by the Hampshire Township Park District for the dispersal of said funds. 
 
 

SIGNED:  ____________________________________ 
 
 

ATTEST:  ____________________________________ 
 
Vote: _______ Ayes 

_______ Nays 
_______ Abstain 

 



 

 

 

 
Background 
 
In an effort to expand programming to include more trips for Little People Playtime, Summer FUN Camp, 
teens, adults and active adults, Staff is considering applying for a Kane County Riverboat Grant to 
purchase a passenger bus. Through the purchase of a larger passenger bus our camps will be able to 
take field trips throughout Kane County as at this time renting a bus is cost-prohibitive.  
 
At this time, quotes are still being obtained to determine our best option, but ideally a 30 passenger or 
less bus with child care seat options is what we are seeking quotes for as quotes are a part of the 
application process. We will be applying for the full amount of the bus, up to $100,000, as that is the 
maximum funding amount an agency can be awarded.  
 
In 2023 the Park District applied for a passenger bus, however, it was for a gas vehicle. Staff would like 
to discuss with the board the possibility of an electric bus.  
 
Applications are due by March 5th.  
 
Recommendation 
 
Motion and second to approve Kane County Riverboat Grant Resolution #2025-06 authorizing Laura 
Schraw, Executive Director, to execute an application, funding agreement, and any other necessary 
documents. 
 
 
 
 

Memorandum 
To:  Hampshire Park Board of Commissioners 
From: Laura Schraw, Executive Director,  
Date:  Feburary 17, 2025  
Agenda Item: IX.F. 
Subject: Kane County Riverboat Grant Resolution #2025-06 



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-06 
 

AUTHORIZING APPLICATION FOR 
KANE COUNTY GRAND VICTORIA RIVERBOAT FUNDS 
AND EXECUTION OF ALL NECESSARY DOCUMENTS 

 
WHEREAS, the Hampshire Township Park District has determined that it in its best 

interest to submit an application for Kane County Grand Victoria Riverboat Funds for the 
Transportation Education Initiative to purchase a passenger bus for transportation purposes; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, said project will allow the Hampshire Township Park District to transport 
children, teens, adults and active adults to destinations throughout Kane County providing 
opportunities through experiences to broaden their education; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Kane County Board must approve said application and will require the 

Hampshire Township Park District to execute a Funding Agreement and other necessary 
documents upon such approval. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Laura Schraw, Executive Director, is hereby 
authorized to execute an application for Kane County Grand Victoria Riverboat Funds, a 
Funding Agreement and other necessary documents upon approval of the application by the 
Kane County Board, and any requests for payment and documentation required to be 
submitted by the Hampshire Township Park District for the dispersal of said funds. 
 
 
 

SIGNED:  ____________________________________ 
 
 

ATTEST:  ____________________________________ 
 
Vote: _______ Ayes 

_______ Nays 
_______ Abstain 

 



  

 

 

 

 
Background 
 
The Park District is in the process of acquiring parks in Prairie Ridge. 
 
One is located on Kelley Road, one on Cornerstone Drive and one on Arbor Ridge Drive. Corresponding 
addresses are currently being assigned. Attached is our temporary park naming policy for consideration 
of temporary park names. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Discussion and proposal of temporary park names for future parks in Prairie Ridge.  
 
 
 

Memorandum 
To:  Hampshire Park District Board of Commissioners 
From:  Laura Schraw, Executive Director 
Date:  February 17, 2025 
Agenda Item: IX.G. 
Subject: Temporary Park Names 



 

 

 
 

 
 

TEMPORARY PARK NAME 

POLICY 
 

The purpose of the “Temporary Park Name Policy” is to establish a naming method or process 

prior to the official naming of a park required to follow the “Naming of Parks Policy.” This policy 

is not to take temporary requests from the public but to allow the park board to select a temporary 

name for new parks within the boundaries.  

 

Any names suggested by the public will be required to follow the “Naming of Parks Policy.”  

 

The following criteria will be used when considering the selection of park-related names: 

 

1. Any road, throughfare, landmark structure, subdivision name, historical feature, 

geographical location, thematic, etc. that correlates to the park site to assist in identifying 

the location of the park.  

2. No park can be temporarily named after any public official currently or previously holding 

office or person currently or previously employed by the Hampshire Township Park 

District. Any official naming after a person must follow the “Naming of Parks Policy.” 

3.   Names that would duplicate the name of another park, building or structure, feature, or 

thoroughfare within the Hampshire Township Park District will not be used. Also, names 

that advocate or endorse religion, religious beliefs, possess obscene connotations, or 

demean or attempt to intimidate any individual or group based on race, ethnicity, age, 

gender, disability, or sexual orientation within the Hampshire Township Park District will 

not be used. 

4.   Renaming: The intent of the Board of Commissioners providing a name is for park 

identification, however the naming is recognized that it is for temporary use. Parks 

that have been named by deed restriction or purchase agreement shall not be 

considered for temporary name. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Approved by the Hampshire Township Park District Board of Commissioners 11/28/2022. 

Hampshire Township Park District 

390 South Ave. 

Hampshire, IL 60140 

847-683-2690 

 


	Agenda 021725
	VA 01272025 Meeting Minutes
	VB Revenue & Expenses Report 1.31.25
	VI Staff Reports February
	vIXA Seyller Park Progress Report Memo
	vIXA1 Seyller Park Progress Report
	vIXB Skate Park Rules Memo
	vIXB1 Skate Park Resolution 2025-02
	vIXB2 Skate Park Rules
	vIXC Ordinance to Replace Registrar Memo
	vIXC1 Ordinance - Replace Registrar 4869-8340-8639 v6
	vIXD Kane County Riverboat Grant Application - Special Event Kit
	vIXD1 2025 Riverboat Grant Special Event Kit
	vIXE Kane County Riverboat Grant Application - STEAM
	vIXE1 2025 Riverboat Grant STEAM
	vIXF Kane County Riverboat Grant Application - Bus
	vIXF1 2025 Riverboat Grant Bus
	vIXG Temporary Park Names Memo
	vXIG1 Temporary ParkNamingPolicy

